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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2006 BUDGET

(C.c. 04-287, c.c. 05-19, c.c. 05-63, c.c. 05-82, and C.c. 05-120)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee Meeting for Wednesday, April 20, 2005. For the record, we have in
attendance this morning, the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Hokama, as well as
Committee Members Carroll, Mateo, Pontanilla, Tavares. Excused this morning is
Member Johnson and Member Molina. Members, this morning, we have the Department
of Fire and Public Safety with us this morning. However, before we proceed with the
discussion with the Department, we do have a few people signed up to testi ... , testify this
morning. So, at this time, I'd like to recognize those signed up to testify. First, if
anybody here in the Chamber has a cell phone or pager, if we can ask that you turn it to
the off or to the silent mode. That way we can avoid unnecessary distractions to the
meeting. Those of you signed up to testify we'll be providing you with a total of four
minutes. At three minutes, we're gonna notify you of that and that will provide you with
an additional minute to conclude your comments. Please state your name for the record,
and if you do represent an organization, we'd like to know that as well. With that, first
person signed up is Karen Cooper. Following Ms. Cooper is Alison Bridge .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. BRIDGE: Good morning Council Members.
CHAIR KANE: You can adjust that.
MS. BRIDGE: I'm actually Alison Bridge. I'm going to talk first, and then Karen's going to
follow me. I'm, I'm Alison Bridge with Kalakupua Playground. I am the Public
Relations Coordinator. I'm, I'm going to tell you a little bit about the program and I
know you all know about it. We've been doing it for three years now. I live across from
the playgrounds, and I drive by there every single day. And I wanted to tell you a little
bit about how wonderful it has affected the community. I have seen some of the most
amazing things happen over there. People are now gathering around the playgrounds as a
place to get together. People are pulling up to it, and having picnics right next to it, so
that they can watch their children. It's impacted our community im ... , immensely. And
not only because of the wonderful playground, but because we helped build it as a
community. We need to also let you know that we are meeting every single month as a
group, Friends of the Playground, and we're working on updating it continuously. Right
now, we do have some needs and wants and Karen Cooper's going to tell you about it.
But I wanted to let you know that it is being watched, and it is being taken care of by the
members of the community still. Karen Cooper is spearheading it, the Playground Ohana
Group. And she's gonna now tell you our needs and wants.
MS. COOPER: Good morning. I'm Karen Cooper and I wanted to thank you for letting us
speak this morning. First of all, I wanted to let you know that we would like to continue
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to instill the community spirit, which we started with the community-built, and we'd like
to continue this relationship with the County of Maui and the Department of Parks and
Recreation as well as the community. And one of the ways we're continuing this with
the community is through, which she had just talked about was the Friends of the Park
Ohana's monthly and bi-annual volunteer maintenance program. We currently have
several groups that have volunteered to continue maintaining the park, such as the Rotary
Club, the Leo Club from King Keakaulike, the Kiwins Club, the Home ... the Maui,
what, what's that called. I'm sorry I have to read this again. The Hawaii Job Corps. The
groups like the Haiku Elementary School, the Haiku Boys and Girls Club, Makawao
Elementary School, and the Seabury School's Leo Club. And we wanted to also let you
know we also have a business that helps volunteer to do the sealing of the playground for
us twice year. And to all of this, we're also going to be continuing to, as we said, get
more people to be updated in this. And we have some new experiences since we're doing
a community-built playground by the number of people who use it daily, and when it's
not raining as well as sometimes when it is. And also, we have been blessed with not
experiencing the vandalism that other parks have had and this is something that was
noted by the East Maui District Personnel. I did want to mention though that you may
have seen, if you've been up there recently, that there are some pickets that are down, and
a rail that is broken. We were originally thinking this was a, a mere vandalism. And
since then, we have been told by different sources that it was actually a girl on a horse
that got loose on the other side that came across the park, and she was knocked into the
rail by the horse, and threw, thrown into the pickets. And so, if you ever hear of anything
that it is not the vandalism that is actually but by an accident. And again, this is
something that in, in a way that you can see it because of the community input, this park
has not seen any vandalism yet, and, I, I do say yet because, you know, it may happen.
And we, you know, we may expect that but so far it's been, it's been really good, and
we're very, very lucky for that.
But what brings us here today is that we would like to continue to work with the Parks
and Recreation Department for their relationship with them by honoring their request to
have us do some changes to the playground. They have recently notified us that the
safety standards have changed and asked us that we do some additions to the playground.
These additions will require approximately $25,000 in costs for the improvement of the
playground. One of the main issues is reinforcing the surfacing of certain areas, and
they'd like us to put some rubber matting surface down. This is Maui County's
requirements. We'll also need some more fire bar and they have asked, they have asked
us to ask you to put it into the Parks CIP Budget for the 2006 Fiscal Budget. So, we
humbly ask that you will consider this and thank you for your time and consideration in
this matter.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for our testifier this morning, Ms.
Cooper? Ms [sic] .... Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
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MS. COOPER: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, yeah, Karen. Just to follow up when the park
was designed, didn't they ... weren't the plans suppose to follow, I guess, whatever
safety design guidelines? Can you kind of share that with us and why now we are at that
this point where Parks is saying that it's not? I guess.
MS. COOPER: Well, actually, it is, we actually are okay with the way it is nationally, but Maui
County's Parks and Recreation personnel said that they personally don't ... they ... their
safety standard guidelines require that they want to have it with this rubber matting.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and who is they, specifically in Parks? Just curious.
MS. COOPER: Well, one of the people that have spoken against us is Pat Matsui. You know,
he's the one that would, you know, really would like us to do this, so.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But yet nationally you're, you're following the guidelines set
nationally, but Maui County it's not?
MS. COOPER: Yeah, Maui County has another standard though for them.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
MS. COOPER: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Chair has two. Did you folks receive, I'm
sorry, did you folks receive written comments from the, the Department telling you of
this? Have you received anything in writing, and if so, we'd like to get a copy of it?
MS. COOPER: No, it's not been in writing. It's just in meetings with them. Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the other thing is that you provided us with testimony, the written
testimony, and in your testimony, you, you cite $10,000 in costs and -MS. COOPER: Oh.
CHAIR KANE: --and yet you stated $25,000.
MS. COOPER: Oh, oh, yes, actually that's, yeah, I am, we're just, when I talked to the ... the
Park called me this morning, and said that actually I should be asking more for $25,000
because they said I do need to ask for more because of the fire bar issue too. They would
like more fire bar put in there as well.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And who is communicating with you directly at the Parks Department?
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MS. COOPER: This is Roxanne Teshima.
CHAIR KANE: No further questions, Members? Hearing none. Thank you for your testimony
ladies, both of you. Thank you.
MS. COOPER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Is there anybody else here in the Chamber that wishes to testify that has not
already done so? Hearing none. Members, without objections, we'll close testimony for
today's meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Members. As stated earlier this morning, we have with us
the Department of Fire and Public Safety. We have Chief Kaupalolo and Deputy Chief
Bal. And I believe we have Firefighter I, Mr. Greg Jenkins, with us this morning, as well
as other personnel that may be available for additional a, a resource. With that, Ms.
Morrison, do you have any opening comments this morning for us? No. Okay.
Members, before I recognize the Chief, is there anything that you'd like to provide for the
Committee? The Chair intends to provide a ... Chief with a chance to make any type of
opening remarks, and the request has been made by Members Hokama and Mateo to have
the Chief and the Department here this morning. So, before I recognize Members
Hokama and Mateo, Chief, you have any opening comments that you'd like to provide
for us?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Hi, none this morning, Chair, except good morning to the, the Budget
Chair and Members of the Committee.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. This morning, any of the two requestors would like to start off, Mr.
Mateo or Mr. Hokama? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And, and, and Chairman,
thank for, for this opportunity as well, and to the Department, good, good morning. My,
my questions at this particular point is, is relating to your, the Department's Strategic
Plan, and, and the connection is, one, I don't know what percent of the Department's
Strategic Plan is actually completed, and that inquiry would be based on the fact that they
really don't know how your existing budget, you know, has any relevance to the
Department's plans, Strategic Plans, that was in fact to, you know, in 2002, a real vital
component of the Department's progressive mov ... , movement. And we really haven't
had any additional follow up relative to the impacts that the Department is either
experiencing based on not being able to implement the items in the Strategic Plan, and
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secondly, the existing number of vacancies in the Department. What impact does that,
that have on the Department being able again implement the objectives, goals, etc. that in
2002 the Department had said was vital for you to, to address?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Chair, if I may?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mateo. You were correct in that we do have, the
Department does have a Strategic Plan. And in 2002, this a, a body here did go ahead
and authorize us to review that process of, of having an evaluation done by a third-party
member, which was the Emergency Services Education Consulting Group that came in,
and worked with us evaluating the Department. And in that same year, in 2002,
November, we also completed what we ... is known today as the Strategic Plan for the
Department, or whether the guidelines as known by guys in, in the Department. In 2004,
we investigated and did a summary on what is a, a current and give you a little update. In
2004, the Department of Fire and Public Safety met, and reviewed, and did an update on
a Strategic Plan. And as a result of that, we were able to accomplish a lot of things to
review, the organizational accomplishments, and since the development of the plan, and
including all the revisions and reviews. Hopefully, the strengths and weaknesses and also
opportunities and threats ... (break in recording) . " critical tasks and timelines that
were adjusted to reflect any continued work, and the work that needed to be done. To
come in here and convince this ... is what I'm trying to say is that we did a lot of work in
2002. The Department since then has accomplished a lot. Many of the initiatives were
very significant and they were ... for some of them have been completed and others are
still under way at this point in time. The accomplishments that we were able to complete
reflect completely all of the Strategic Plan. Areas of, of taking a look at the different
objectives. If you look at the Strategic Plan document that we have, it list eight different
sep ... , separate goals. Within these goals, we also list the different objectives and tasks,
critical tasks that we need to do to accomplish some of these objectives and meet some of
the goals. We, we would be able to provide that information for you in, in a, in a written
format. I think that would be little more clear, I guess, in, in, in trying to just randomly
tell you some of the things we've done, but we would be able to do that. I also have with
us this morning Fire Commanding Officer, Mike DeCosta, who is our Strategic Plan's
Manager for the program, that would be more than happy to give you an update as to
where we are with the Strategic Plan, and how it also relates to our budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Chief Kaupalolo, what percent of this plan is complete?
MR. KAUPALOLO: In my opinion, if we're looking at the plan so far what, what we've ... if,
if, if we can put this whole plan into perspective as to what percentage in there, we are
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still far from I would say probably 30 percent in my thinking of the plan that has been
kind of like implemented and we're working on. The, the key about this, I think, and my
understanding is that the goals and objectives are management tools, in which we try to,
you know, apply and, and the direction of where we need to go in terms of the
Department. So, I would say we about 30 percent within that range.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and with your existing budget that you're requesting this
year, you would be able then to complete the additional directives because at this
particular point, Chief, there's a lot directives that are, based on your timetable, is either
should've been completed, you know, or as of next month especially, a good number of
additional implementing actions should be completed as well. So, this budget will allow
you the opportunity to move in completing most of these objectives?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct, Mr. Mateo. It would allow us to do that and would allow
us to continue. Some of these objectives, even though our timeline to, to end still need to
continue with some of the things that need to be done. We've looked at a lot of the
objectives, and they are sort of in related or they integrate into another one, and that's
how we just continue with it. There's some that you can just stop and drop and, and
those certainly as the budget will allow us to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. One, one of the objectives that, that was recognized in
the plan was in dealing with Department morale and personnel issues in needs that was
recognized. And yet at this point, you still have a considerable number of vacancies.
And if I could, and you if you can just correct me if this list is wrong, you have a vacant
Assistant Chief's position, a Fire Captain, Firefighter III (12 vacant), Firefighter I (five
vacant), and Firefighter Trainee Recruit. So, I'm a little concerned with this large
number of vacancies, and, and, you know, balance that off with your directives on your
own Strategic Plan because some how that's a large component that's not really being
addressed. Can you respond to the number of vacancies?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yeah. And, I, I, I thank you for that question, again, Mr. Mateo. I believe
I tried to clarify that at, at the, at the second meeting we had regarding this question. At
the present time, we have ongoing the 23 rd Firefighter Recruit Training Class that, that
will be helping us to fill these vacancies in there. There are also things that are created
within the Department that were beyond our control as people leaving for better
opportunities within the public sector. There were retirees at the end of the year that
decided that, that they, they would be retiring. So, these generated unanticipated kinds
of, of vacancies in the Department. But I think, however, we have been able to address
that by starting the recruit class, and by if I'm not mistaken by July ... well I think it's
the end of July that we'll be able to fill these vacancies. In fact, I've got some good news
that our testing for Firefighter Ill's, the application deadline was on April 11. So, we are
moving forward on fulfilling those vacancies there on the Firefighter III level. On the
Fire Assistant Chief's position, I thank the ... the, the, the Committee here for allowing
us to move on the reorganizational part of the Department. We have been aiming for one
Assistant Chief. The other is on a, a temporary position being filled by the Fire
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Command Officer, Mike DeCosta. In, in, in those positions, we are, we are moving
forward to, to try to fill those vacancies permanently.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Chairman, thank you. I will, I will yield.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if you don't mind, I, I'd like to stay with the Strategic
Plan and finish that before I move on to my other areas.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, I've been listening carefully to your responses to Mr. Mateo's
comments and, I think, you pretty close. You've ... appears you've met, met nine out of
your 34 objectives. So, maybe my first question on your Strategic Plan is your Objective
I-C. And, and, Members, the Department did put out a November Strategic Plan. Then
they came up with their March 2002 evaluation, then we have their 2004 update. And I
know you started off, and it's pretty much consistent Chief, but I for one am getting to, to
be candid with you, dislike the word customer. Yeah. And for one, our residents don't
have a choice whether or not they want to use Fire Department for rescue. It's, it's a
requirement. We need to perform and this should be about our community and our
residents, not about customers. And so, I just want to state, so you can understand where
I'm coming from.
On l-C of your Objective, you state your goal is to improve the quality of fire dispatch
services, and your goal is June 2006. You're well aware that this Council has supported
millions of dollars to improve the Fire ... the Police Department's capability to receive
9-1-1, to aid in dispatch. My question to you this morning is ... is the Fire Department
working with a, your, your colleagues, the Police Department regarding the new
computer assisted dispatch system?
MR. KAUPALOLO: My understa ... , I'm sorry. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's your objective l-C?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. I, I understand your questions, whether
or not the Department is, is working with the Police Department on this particular listed
in terms of the communication. I'll, I'll personally I'll have you assign, if you look at the
responsibility over there, it mentions in the Assistant Chief, Alan Cordeiro, and also the
Firefighter, Leo Domingo. They have been in the communication or have met with the
Police Department's represen ... , representative regarding this issue. My understanding is
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that we are at the juncture of waiting for, I guess, the next, that stage or the next part of
... that, that needs to be worked with the Police Department on. So, we're, we're wor ... ,
working with them, but we're kind of waiting for that kind of response from them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
forthcoming, please?

What is your understanding of when a response might be

MR. KAUPALOLO: I'm, I'm gonna ask if our Deputy Chief or maybe Firefighter Greg Jenkins
can add a little bit more to that and, and hopefully get a more complete answer for you,
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chief.
CHAIR KANE: If you can identify yourself for the record, please.
MR. JENKINS: Greg Jenkins with the Department of Fire and Public Safety. To add to, Chair
and Mr. Hokama, to add to what Chief stated about the CAD system. In the Special
Operations Division, Captain Jeff Kihune is working on the mapping, computer mapping
system for the Department, and coordinating a lot of the different department resources,
whether it be with hazardous materials, fire prevention needs, and other special
operations. And one of the things we've been doing is working directly with MIS
Division on updating our data fields, which support the mapping programs which would
eventually be utilized with the GIS Division of the County for that, that CAD system for
dispatch. And so, we have some current things being worked out with the Pacific
Disaster Center and our County with some Memorandums of Understanding, which
enables some very cost effective ways for us to improve these maps, which we really
would require to make that CAD system operational. So, in grant funding there is a lot of
different things being thrown at it. So, that's, that's one key component that's hedging on
any progress on that particular objective which Captain Kihune's Division is addressing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, let me understand this, Captain Kihune is in charge of this area.
I'm, I'm going by your, your, your book, Chief. It says, Assistant Chief Cordeiro and
your Firefighter, Mr. Domingo, has that responsibility. And I just wanna, I wanna be
clear because this appears to be a ongoing assignment, yeah, for the Department. And yet
when we look at I-E, which is the Review and Revise Dispatch, that Captain Thyne has
been assigned. It appears that has been completed. So, one side of, of, of your plan,
while, there's multiple components is saying this is complete but this other half, which I
think is critical, regarding the CAD is not complete. So, I'm trying to get an
understanding of where the Department is with this important program, which is
dispatching the people to the right place in a timely manner.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Chair. If I may respond?
CHAIR KANE: Chief.
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MR. KAUPALOLO: And thank you for your questions again, Mr. Hokama. I'll try to put it in,
maybe I, and just kind of clarify a little bit more in that the responsibilities that you ... or
the responsible's that, that you're looking at, that's mention the Firefighters that are
assigned to it, these Firefighters attended the 2004 Strategic Plan Upgrade, and they
volunteered to take on these assignments. Some of them were more defaulted because
that's the area of responsibility we, we needed to get a chief in there. So, the, a, a lot of
information, and information would be brought back, back to the, the people that needed
to know. In this case here, we broke down a lot of the work because we don't have, I
guess, a lot of staff in there; our Firefighters had brought into the program or have
brought into the Strategic Plan. Their willingness to come up and help has, has allowed
us to kind of diversify or split up the program work in there. So, in this case, Mr., Mr.
Kihune along with this special option has been looking at a data base type of program,
how they could structure a program that would interface with police and the CAD, and at
the same time Mr. Thyne would work on what we call the
kinds of program that
we need to keep our people up to speed with reporting systems for National Fire Incident
Assistance. Okay. We, we, we splitted the so-called objectives to allow us to have ...
not a huge work load but to allow us to have less work load within the same objective, if,
if I could put it that way. So, Mr. Kihune is handling a part of that, that related to
improving the quality of, of fire dispatch, and at the same time, Mr. Thyne was, was
looking at to review the dispatch response assignment. And these are really, as we
looked at it, and we looked at the objective, we saw that these two objectives should be
separate because of the kinds of work involved. One looked at really putting the
structure, the other was trying to look at developing standards and coverage based on, and
at base standards.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I'm listening hard, to, to your response, Chief, and, and
I'm trying to, you know, you, you come from great, greater experience from than I am,
so, I'm try ... , trying to understand this well. Therefore, for me, yeah, supporting millions
of dollars for police and to assist your Department as well as ambulance service to
respond, you know, the term tear and run sheets program, where as soon as the dispatcher
gets a call he inputs in the computer that goes to a printer, and he just rip off that address
and, and the specific called out requirements. If it's heart attack, you know, your people
responding to a medical situation. If there's a big vehicle over spill and get fuel and paint
and what not, you know you gotta get your HazMat people as your critical people there.
Is that something you, you folks pursuing or you folks have thought about but have
decided it's not a good idea? You, you see inefficient. Is there a better mode of getting
the communication to our appropriate response personnel in the fastest time possible?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Chair. If I may respond to that. Again, Mr. Hokama, you
know, I really appreciate your questions because they are exactly in the line of thought
or, or, the, the thinking of the Department. And, and that's real important that we hear
this from you because this allows us and gives us that support that we are moving in the
right direction. I'm gonna have Chief Bal explain that a little more. He has been
working on this ... since a year, about a year now, we've been working with different
individuals out there to try to _ _ this through the point where we had a proposal,
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we've time-lined it, we've, we've looked at some budget costs or expenditures for it, and
then the dates to implement. So, if I can please have you do that.
MR. BAL: Thank you. We have, we had talked about this and, and how we can accomplish a
lot of this. Those propriety types of information that is not easily gained, but we have
pulled that out. We, we had a committee that needed to identify a lot of the questions
besides a tear and rip, and then you end up with a second call along the way, and we're
not at the station. We need that information on board. You know, we ... so we have
looked at both ways. And initially that's, that's very good program that could come out
with a map, and, you know, even paint the way for you, what roads to take. It can also
layer the fire hydrants that may be in specific areas. And we also looked at the on board
computers, and we decided that if we have multiple calls while we're out, it's only fair to
say that, I think, the multiple or the computer, on board computer's would probably ...
(CHANGE TAPE) ... that we have a hard copy of where on our initial call. Now, we
have looked this system over, and like I said, the on board computers would probably be
ideal. We have not been able to move forward -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, just, just so we understand, you mean you work with this
regularly. When you say, on board computers, these are computers on our equipment?
MR. BAL: On, on the fire trucks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, it's like the what the police had asked, requested this Committee
in the past regarding some type of GPS program. Is that sim ... , similar?
MR. BAL: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay.
MR. BAL: The, the problem with, with moving forward with this program, of course, is I, I
don't believe the police is set in what they're going to be doing and how they're going to
it. So, it, it would not be appropriate for us to try and push this program before we know
what's coming out of the police because they drive, of course, the dispatch, the mapping,
and everything else, but we haven't stopped there. You know, we have, we have been
working with the Pacific Disaster Center, who is their program that was given to us last
year, is driven by our request to them, and they have Federal funds to do this type of
mapping for us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAL: At no cost to the Department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Terrific, terrific. Now, the reason I ask is, you know, the police is
coming into their next phase of, of, of large request for IT system, and I would like us to
be able to utilize the maximum capabilities of that system, and if it can provide more
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opportunities and improve the Fire Department's ability to respond ... 1, I would like that
to be part of an incorporated, what you call, any required services that the County
provides. You know, police and, and you folks, the Fire Department, is, is critical in the
County's mission. You are two major mandated departments that only the County
basically provide service, you know, in our, our communities. Not the Federal
government, not the State government. It's the County guy, and you folks are the front
line face and, and that deal with our community, besides you being part of that same
community. So, I'm looking at how to maximize the use of this million dollars request
for the next phase of Police IT expansion. And so, I appreciate the, what you mention in
there. Why don't we move on to another area of, of your, because I'm trying to relate it
to the budget.
MR. BAL: Can, can I add a little -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. BAL: -- ... (inaudible) ... line, and, and I may be a little naIve on, on what's happening
with the police, but in the past, you know, we have been carried along with the dispatch
and ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, oh, when, when I asked you, Chief, the question about
integration, it was kind of foggy, the response as I received it. Maybe for the other
Members they were more clear about how, like the Police Department tends.
MR. BAL: Maybe I shouldn't assume because we, like I said, every time they've changed, they
batted, or enhances it, the, the Department has been towed along if you like.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, for me, I won't support isolated and independent systems
when we know we can be integrated. There's too much money involved and doesn't
make sense to me in certain things.
MR. BAL: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Under 4-A, regarding the SI, extremely hazardous material incidents
as well as, as it relates to your budget request, Chief, this year you requested $28,000 plus
a few more dollars. Again, you deal with it more than, you know, we do, I mean, is, is
this really a sufficient amount regarding extreme, and again, it's has it with extremely
hazardous, but still that you folks are, are deal with them, be prepared for? Again, with
the proposal of, of things that mayor may not happen at Kahului Harbor, the State's
movement in improvements at Kahului Airport, now you folks are going to be the first of
our County people that may be on site, so is this the kind of money that will ensure safety
for our community?
MR. KAUPALOLO: If I could. Chair, if may? Mr. Hokama, would you clarify that where the
$20,000 that, that you're speaking of for me?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's in isn't it in your HazMat request $28,385.
CHAIR KANE: Can you give us a reference, Mr. Hokama, so the body can be along with you
on this.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Stay in budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on Chairman. 'Cause when I went back to the previous years,
we looking at expended '04, $12,462. Last year we gave, what, $11,385. HazMat,
HazMat.
CHAIR KANE: 6-8 of your Details?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: And the numbers you reference about mid way down the page.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. It's for Account 911255 HazMat Division.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Okay, thank you. I'm on that page, 6-8, 911255, Hazardous Materials
Division.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm trying to match it up with your Strategic Plan 4-A, Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: And, I'm sorry to have lost you on my train of thought, but your, your
reference back to that $28,000, the, the questions that, that you were concerned with was,
how does that relate with our Strategic Plan?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, 'cause 4-A, you deal with 4-A where, where your,
your bold language says, to deal with extremely hazardous material incidents. Okay,
you've made us aware that ... (break in recording) ... it's a ... at the level that we need
to be concerned about.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Okay. I appreciate that and thank you for clarifying for me what, what,
where they're at, and also your question on, based on this particular objective is an
ongoing objective. So, as you can see, in the
, we call it really it's not the
responsible, we call it the POC, the person in charge. We looked at, and, and this is
pretty much ongoing with this critical task of working on, on how we can address and
prepare for these kinds of hazardous material incidents. We have been able to train, if not
all, at least I would say 95 percent of our people into the technical phase of it, of, of
HazMat. We've been able to develop _ _ funds through our LEPC program that
identifies so-called the local distributors or local businesses that, that carry these kinds of
products. Also, we've been meeting with the TSA people on the airports ... personnel
on dealing with these kinds of hazardous types of incidents that may occur, both within
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the community, and on the airports property. We are still sending personnel, the lead
personnel in, in the Division should be in the Bill. We are heading these with our
training 'cause this is a specialized training where a firefighter off the line would not be
able to conduct these kinds of training nor would they have the expertise to that. So, it
takes quite a while to train them, over a year, to get them up to that level of where they,
they can be productive. Our next phase is to be able to deal with so-called training the
entire Department up to the level of awareness is my understanding. Level of awareness
is the progression that we want to take everybody and move them forward on it. We also
been able to explore through the HazMat Division, the, I guess, the opportunities of
having a designated HazMat team, or even explore the opportunity of having a dedicated
a, a, personnel for that kinds of work. These kinds of objectives in critical task, some of
those questions need to be addressed, and have, have not been complete in, in addressing
these questions. So, this is an ongoing objective, and we're time lining that by '06, we'd
like to be able to at least put forward a proposal by the Department to address this
particular objective.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chief, and 'cause I'm looking at that, and then I look at your
next Account 911420, which is your Training Haz ... , Hazardous Materials Account.
Gee, the one area you seem to have asked for ad ... some ... for additional support is in
your R & M Service Contracts. So, is that suppose help you take care your, your needs?
I mean what is, what is that for then?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you again, Chair. Mr. Hokama, may I just clarify. This is, in the
911420 under Training & HazMat Materials & Supplies, it's listed under both for training
and for hazardous material side. It's my understanding that this would help both for
training and HazMat, and not just specifically for the HazMat Bureau.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but this is R & M Service Contracts.
MR. KAUPALOLO: It is my understanding that R & M would be for Repair & Maintenance
kinds of things that are necessary for that particular bureau or bureaus.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I not to sure that's the right number for '06. I'll move
on. I, I, can I assume you have completed 5-B and 6-A, since you
your
deadlines? You developed an integrated response system with other emergency service
providers. And if the answer is yes, does that include the Parks & Recreation Ocean
Safety Division?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I may?
CHAIR KANE: Can I?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama, this is Objective 5-A, Ensure the Department is
prepared to respond to a terrorism ...
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, 5-B, 5-B, Chief. Sorry.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you for that clarification. Objective 5-B, Develop an integrated
response system with other emergency services providers. In this particular case, there is
a yes and there is a no on this. To the first part of your question, it's yes. We have been
able to complete the integration and to identify the emergency ... the other emergency
providers. We have been able to do that. We are though in, I would say, very
preliminary stages of addressing the, I guess, the Ocean Safety Officers' requests. We
currently received a request from the Budget Chair, Mr. Kane, to respond to that
question. So, I guess, the second part, we are in working phase, I guess, of it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, can you inform the Chair and us, the Committee, this morning
on when your response may be anticipated? The Chair has us moving toward decision
making through the end of this week.
MR. KAUPALOLO: If, if, my, if you know if I understand it correctly, Mr. Hokama, on your
question, we, we did submit a written to the Chair regarding that request.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That request. Thank you.
MR. KAUPALOLO: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. On, on 6-A, Chief, regarding that new construction
inspections with the building department to eliminate duplication. Have you been
successful in that?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. We have ... I've, I've spoken with Captain Martin, and he
has informed me that we have been able to address Objective 6-A, Clarify responsibility
for new construction inspections with building, with the Building Department, to
eliminate duplication of effort. And, and this mainly came because back in September in
2002, we may have had such issues there that we needed to address, and it is my
understanding that the, the meetings did occur and there were discussions and resolutions
to addressing the duplication or eliminating the duplication efforts.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One of my areas of concern is 8-D, Chief. The Review and revision
of all promotional exam processes.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, would you repeat that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 8-D.
MR. KAUPALOLO: D as in delta.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: D as in delta. Is this one of the things holding up the Firefighter's III
test?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I may? Thank you, Mr. Hokama. To answer that specific
question, urn, no, this is not, it would not be holding it up. The present test that we have
is through the process of DPS and that process is still being imple ... , implemented.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. 'Cause I was listening to Mr. Mateo's listing of vacancies, so,
I'm wondering how this fits into your ability to, to fill those vacancies.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Chair, for your response to that. If and when this so-called
Objective 8-D is implemented, we, we'd like to be able to explore all of those
opportunities and all of those strengths and weaknesses that would affect this
implementation of the objective. Ironically, you are correct. If we did implement this the
way it is, we probably would have some lag or delay added to the process, but that's part
of what we're looking into prior to implementation of this particular objective, is to not
create those kinds of stop gaps or this kinds of delays in there. We, we think that there is
a good probability that we can implement these while addressing the critical tasks that
we, we have identified in this objective.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm going to leave this pretty soon, Chairman, and, but one of the
things that I'm interested is 8-0, as one of your Strategic requests was dedicated grant
coordinator position, and your target date is August '05. But then, I'm aware that it's on
in the '06 Budget request, I cannot find it.
a
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. Chair, if I may respond to Mr. Hokama?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama, this particular timelines that we have and ... a
lot of it is projected timelines. They're not hard and fast timelines for us, but they're
projected timelines that the Department at that point in time upon creation of the
document felt that this would be prudent for us in a timely manner that we could, we
could accomplish these kinds of objectives. Apparently, you're correct in, in, in
reviewing it that this was not something that the Department felt that we could implement
in a timely fashion to, to have this on budget at this point in time. It certainly doesn't
mean that we have moved away from that objective.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Department?

Is it an Assistant Chief then doing this type of work for the

MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct. We have our Assistant Chief's also writing or, or helping
now, to like I said to write grants or ensure that our grants. It's actually a lot of relief if I
had, if I can have Firefighter Greg Jenkins just expound a little bit, you know, because
that's really where we, we have gone to in the last, I would say, six months, is try to look
at that. So, if I could, Mr. Hokama.
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MR. JENKINS: Chair, Mr. Hokama. When, when this particular update of the Strategic Plan
was, was put into effect, there was a lot of existing grants that the, the County and the
Department was receiving that needed to be managed, and there was a lot of visions of, of
programs that grants could fund that the Chief had as a priority. At that time, there was
more than one person could handle all the work load, and so, the Chief developed a
grants team of which he had oversight of, and that responsibility also falls under Captain
Jeff Kihune at this time, and coordination up to chain of command with the
reorganization that goes through the Assistant Chief of Support Services Division, up
through the Fire Chief, who ultimately makes the decisions that a grant
the
Department. And with all of our grants, such as with FEMA, the Office of Domestic
Preparedness, and many other sources, we've taken people in the Department that have
those areas of expertise. They work, work as a team to develop the narratives that
support those grants, and we kind of work as a team to get those submitted. The thing
that's, that's plagued our Department, which was, is really being corrected is the initiative
to start a grant, submitting the application, with them providing for implementation and
sustainability of these programs in our County. We're getting a lot of equipment and a
lot of money for these things and, and we're trying to do a better job of, of maintaining
these programs in the long term and that takes quite a few people. So, team approach has
been successful. And so, I don't want to take away the Chief's specific title so, so that
position for example, but it's more of a grants coordinator if you will now, and Captain
Jeff Kihune under, under the Chief right now is the main person that we go to, to
facilitate that communication through Administration.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I, I, I appreciate your comment Mr. Jenkins, Firefighter
Jenkins. Chief, the last one that intrigues me is 8-H. 'Cause I, I, you know, I can't really
support this, the quality of training and educate, and education for fire people, our men
and women, in your Department. What ... the budget is kind of flat. So, and I know the
proposed deadline is April 2005. So, is there going to be a change in the Department's
direction regarding this area?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Chair. If I may respond? Mr. Hokama, this, this particular
Objective 8-H, to Improve the quality of training and education delivered to department
personnel, it's such a huge ... at the time when we looked at this particular objective, it
seemed like that this is just going to be another objective, but it, it had a lot of work to it.
At this particular time, when we looked at the objective to implement some of these kinds
of things, we needed to actually move timeline this and get it a little more breathing
room. For us to, I'm gonna let Fire Command Officer DeCosta expound, explain a little
bit on this. Mike has also been our previous training officer, training captain in that
particular goal, but is also now the Assistant Chief in, Chief in Charge of Support
Services. This particular objective when we looked at it, we really wanted to stay
focused and looked at how we could improve the level of training for our firefighters to
provide the quality service out there to the community and to our visitors. One of the
things we looked at was that there is a lot more involved in certification of firefighters.
This is a national standard. It's a, a, a progression that we need to take our firefighters
that have been in the Department with us for the last 25 years and bring them all up this
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level that we need to. So, it is a huge undertaking, and also due to maintaining the vision
of becoming an accredited Fire Department, that is the, the key criteria to look at this,
these two major things there. And to be very frank with you, it, it has taken us, because
again, we were using the concept of the values of shared leadership and team work as
part of our, our values that the firefighters actually are helping out to make this a reality.
They're ... the three, three member team in training right now. Their entire, plus the
Captain, their entire time is devoted to the 23 rd Recruit Class. So, in relaying the scope of
that work, there are people that trying to help us to move this forward. And, and, you
know, that's kind of the nutshell of where we are at with this, but a lot of things have
happened. I'm gonna ask if I can have Chief DeCosta share with a lot of the things that
have occurred in the training on this particular objective. If, if I may.
MR. DeCOSTA: Chair. Thank you, Chief. Council member Hokama. First of all, let me
apologize, 'cause I'm not a person that really thinks on my feet, but I'll just answer your
questions to clarify. The Strategic Plan is basically long-term planning for the
Department. And it's not something that, that dies, you know, and Objective H-A, H,
8-H is a very good example of this. At the time we formulated the Strategic Plan, it was
meant that the, the Department was having some problems in our training and efforts and,
and, we needed to improve that for the safety of our firefighters, and this goal came in
existence. Okay. Once the goal's achieved, this is one of these goals that really is never
achieved, because there's never enough information that you can, never enough training
that you can provide firefighters. This is something that has to keep going on and on and
on and on. So, as far as, you know, right now as of today, you know, the question you're
asking is, you know, our budget doesn't reflect a great number of increase in the training
side. And, and, the reason for that is because right now with the training that we're
doing, as far as the Department goes, you know, we've met this objective, as, as, it states.
We were now providing better training for our firefighters. We are doing research and
development of starting like certification programs, where we begin to look at our
firefighters, and positions in our Fire Department to do that. As we continue on, because
we have to continue on this objective, as we continue on through this objective and
getting as we get closer to these initiatives of solving these initiatives, that's when you're
gonna see the budget driven side of it. We're gonna come in and ask, okay, we're now
ready to implement the certification program and, but certification program is gonna cost
us some money. Then you'll see an increase in our budget. You know right now it's all
in planning stages, so we've, we've brought our level of training in the Department due
to additional personnel, and add ... , additional technology to a higher standard, and that
was our goal back then in 2002, and that's where we wanted to be. So, right now, our,
our firefighters are receiving better training. You know, we using the grants to get better
equipment, like our, our burn trailer that you guys saw, you know, it's a $300,000 piece
of equipment, and that provides tremendous opportunities for firefighters to enhance their
skills. However, because we've met that doesn't mean that this goal goes away. Again,
this is one of these ongoing goals. It's something that we're gonna continue on. And,
and as, as of this year though, you don't see a reflection because I don't think so we're
ready to move into the next level. Right now, I can tell you right now, training is going
through our certification program, looking to find out what's ... is required by the NFP A
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to certify our firefighters and that level. So, once we reach that level, then you're gonna
see more of the budget affected on, on that. So, what happens is when we re-visit the, the
Strategic Plan, because the Strategic Plan is not something that dies. It's, it's a goal. It's
a, it's a long-term goal oriented for the Department. So, where we want to go, and as we
re-visit it, it'd will probably beginning of next year, 'cause we do it like every two years,
then you're gonna see that this H, this 8-H, this goal is still gonna be there. It may not be
8-H next time. It may be 8-A or something, but you're gonna see a different timeline
again. It's just that those immediate objectives that we want to be taken care of at that
time is gonna be brought up to the front line, and then we're continue moving on that.
It's a little bit different time line. So, just, just to answer your question. I hope I didn't
confuse you anymore, but that's why you didn't see that kind of increase in our budget.
It's because at this point, we've already done the objectives, but now we, we've
continued to work on it. We're going to take it to the next level, but we really not ready
to take it into the budget process to go into certification yet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well. ..
MR. DeCOSTA: ... {inaudible} ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, let me just tell you, you know, are using your document, and
I'm grading you guys on your performance, or lack of. According to you, what you
propose to achieve within a certain time frame on your schedule that you propose to us.
Okay. So, for me when you say things like, you know, incentives for achieving higher
education, then I look at your registration training fees on page 6-9, Sub-code 6230,
you've been flat for three years. Okay. So, for me, I'm wondering the verbiage sounds
great. I can support those kind of things as a match up in the financial request. So, one,
you either gotta readdress your Strategic Plan, or adjust your numbers to make it
consistent. And, I'll leave it at that and on, on the Strategic Plan, Chairman. So thank
you, Chairman, for my ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...
CHAIR KANE: Is there any questions in the area of the eight goals in the sub, sub-objectives?
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Some of the questions I, I was going
to ask, Member Hokama have already asked. In regards to the goals and objective of the
Department, now the things that I'd like to focus on is basically, I think, Mr. DeCosta
answered some of the questions that I was going to ask in regards to, you know, how
often do we review this goals? And, the, the thing that really got me is that every two
years you allowed to take a look at the goals in regards to their priority. The question
that I have is that of the goals that are written in this Strat Plan, how often do you review
the goals and the progress that has been made by the I, I guess, firefighter that or
personnel that is responsible for those goals?
CHAIR KANE: Chief.
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. I'm, I'm going to, because
Chief DeCosta manages our Strategic Plan program, and has a better overview of, of the
program, I'd like to have Chief DeCosta respond, you know, to that, please.
CHAIR KANE: Chief.
MR. DeCOSTA: Thank you, Chair, and Member Pontanilla. Again, you know, we ... it's an
ongoing process. We ... I go through these goals and try to communicate with the
people in response to who's in charge of, of these goals, and we communicate by email
to try to keep us updated as far as where we're, where we're at, and what their working
on. And sometimes, we're ahead of schedule, sometimes we're behind schedule. If
we're behind schedule we try to ... I try to motivate them, which, which, in today's
world is, is sometimes really hard, especially when a lot of these people are doing it, you
know, for the good of the Department, and on their own time. And so, they, you, you
know, they have things that they do, but, if it's behind schedule, we just try to push 'um
up a little, you know, and try to say, oh well, you know, we need to get this done.
Sometimes we hit road blocks that, that really don't ... but that can't make us progress
anymore. We have to take care of that road block first. But to answer your question
particularly, yet we do review it, you know, on a constant basis, and we do keep in
communication with these people, and they, they try to email back and forth to me to
keep me updated on as what they're doing.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And, and this information that you get from the
firefighters that are responsible, does that information is passed to your superiors as well
as the Fire and Public Safety Committee ... Commission?
MR. DeCOSTA: Well, I have not passed anything on, you know, based on in, in as far as, like
we use, we use a Microsoft project that we try to keep guidelines on. And unfortunately,
you know, there's only a couple of people in our Department that have this on their, on
their computers and, and the printing capabilities of this ... otherwise, I would have had
something for you guys today, but our Department computers went down just before, you
know, this morning, and I couldn't get that printed, but it, it does and, and normally
whenever they request something we, we'll take it to them, but I don't recall any requests
coming back to me for that. So, they are kept informed.
COUNCILEMBER PONTANILLA: So, you do use the Microsoft ... well I, I guess we call
'um program scheduler, yeah?
MR. DeCOSTA: Yeah, it's a project, Microsoft project. Yeah, it's, it's just a, you, you know,
for as little as I know of it, okay, because, you know, I have never been trained, and you
know, and I've been trying to get training but because it's a very, I guess, not well used
project in the community that the, the VITEC or MCC doesn't carry classes all the time.
And, I've been in contact with them trying to get classes to attend it, but I use as basic,
you know, bar graphs and it, it just tells me that, you know, this project is, you know, 50
percent or 40 percent or wherever is complete, so that I can look at it, I go, okay, well use
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this initiative is, is pretty much done. What, you know, what's the next initiative that he
needs to work on or if an initiative is falling behind, like I said, I go back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, as far as, the training that we provide our
firefighters actually you, you keep training records and is, is their like a, I'm sure you
have, you know, like a refresher time when this training need to be done again ... like on
a timely manner, maybe every two years or annually or ...
MR. DeCOSTA: Yeah, as far as the training process goes in our Department, there's certain
certifications that need to be done recertified annually, and we have those on training
timelines that they have to come in each ... personnel in our Department has to come in
and do the recertification. There's other training requirements ... is, is just a skill
enhancements that is basically an ongoing thing. It's something that they do all the time,
everyday. Our Training Department has put out different training schedules for them to
follow. Things that, you know, if, if there's an event that happens, and we find that we
weren't really happy with something, then we'll make them go back to their basic skills
and, and do these testings. These are all logged on our efforts and, and that's the training
reports that they have, and it's all kept in, in its national files. So, yes, there is
certification side that takes care of our annual certifications, but there's also our daily
training that they do just to keep up their technical skills side.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So, there is like a training tree that you follow?
MR. DeCOSTA: Well, they, like I said, they, they're, they're constantly ... everything that
they, everything that they learned in the Department is always being reo .. , reiterated on,
on a daily basis. However, in order for them to keep up that skills, all, all we do is we,
you know, a lot of times some Captains maybe feeling that rope rescue is a ... has been
lacking in their Department. So, when we say, there's a training day, you know, they,
they take their crew and says, okay, you know, we really kind of slack on rope. That's ..
. they'll go into the rope rescue techniques and things like that. Our Training Division
though also puts out what we call bi-monthly reports that says that, you know, this month
we want to work on hose evolutions. We want to make sure that your, your evolution
process on how you lay hose, and how you attack fires is, is still being met to minimum
specifications and, and that's an ongoing process.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Let's see. I had another question, but I just lost it when
you were talking so.
MR. DeCOSTA: Good job.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair, I'll yield now, yeah, until I get that
question in my mind again. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions within the ... Updated Strategic Plan
objectives as it relates to the 2006 Budget Proposal from the Administration? The Chair
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has just one question. And, and first, I'd like to echo the opening remarks of
Council member Hokama regarding the word customer.
And it's just a simple
replacement of the word customer with the word citizen. Very simple. And Chief, no
need for comment on that, but just take it as a, as a respectful, respectful request from us
to you in our reflecting what, what our County is, is, is with citizens and not, we're not a
business. We're, we're a government entity. So, 1, I just wanted to reiterate and echo
Mr. Hokama' s comments.
One of the major, I guess, concerns I have overall and, and Members, the Chair will not
get caught up too much with, with the Updated Strategic Plan 'cause I know we need to
relate it back to our budget. I guess the concern is the absence within all the objectives as
well as the goals and objectives that are listed in the front summary areas. The only thing
I see is listed on page two under Objective 8-K and reads, Ensure the Department's
Interests and Needs are Represented in the Community Development Planning Process.
That seems to be the only language with respects to infrastructural development, whether
it's full on facilities development over a long-term plan. And, and, my connection back
to the budget is with the movement that we started last year, and we're hoping to see this
year, but don't see it in this year's budget is, which was mentioned earlier whether it's the
Molokai Station, moving the Kaunakakai Station, or if it's the development of either a
Haiku Station, or a development of a, a new area for the Wailuku Station as it exist today,
and to what we're looking for as dev ... , development. I say that because there's nothing,
absolutely nothing in this Strategic Plan that talks anything about long-term plans of
facilities. And so the, hopeful as you look at your updates and some things file away, and
some things kind of evolve in, that, that becomes a component that would help us, and
with the development in coordination with the Office of the Mayor and the Managing
Director's Office for long-term strategy and planning of CIP that would help us. But
unless I'm, I'm not seeing where that discussion is, and the Chair will apologize upfront
if I'm missing that. If there is an area specific to discussion of long-term development of
major infrastructure expansion, can you please point that out for us? Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: Firefighter probably have located something.
MR. KAUPALOLO: It is in our Strategic Plan. It may not be as clear as maybe it should be, but
it does talk about our future kinds of plans and ideas that, that we have or goals and
objectives that, that we have. I try to look at one that probably was more of an internal
that looked at Objective 8-G, and the reason I say that is because it, it, it developed a long
range staffing plan to ensure delivery of quality of services. And if you look at the
clerical task, someone may look at the future kinds of needs that we would have to
address. Also, I just been ... the other objective would be in Goal 7. It's under page 31,
Ma .. , Maintain Vehicle and Equipment for Emergency Response. This looks at the
develop and fund long-term apparatus facilities and small equipment maintenance
replacement plans. Part of these kinds of things is in there. I'm looking at facilities to
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identify these, these facilities or the need, and also what the financial kinds of needs
would be. So, we, we feel that it is in this, this particular Strategic Plan. Also, I believe
the other section may have been in the, I think it's H-8 [sic], as in fox trot. This objective
on page 33, Acquire Training Facility Needed to Provide an Effective Training Program.
Again, the critical task been identified is again to identify, and to provide, and to explore
the sites, the opportunities, and acquire the funding. So, in, in a way, yes, I believe and
like when you make that statement that we, we are identifying it within our Strategic
Plans and. .. we are working on these objectives.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Chief, for your comments and pointing out various areas.
Now, Chair's hope is that it would develop into something of a major, come right out in
your face and tell you what our long-term goals are with the Department with respects to
additional needs for future growth in this County, and being tucked away in as little subobject codes on most. For me, Members, and just as one of nine of you, just doesn't cut
it for me. It just needs to be out there front and center because that's what's really going
to help us understand our major budgetary responsibilities to, for the future growth.
Chief, any final comments before we move on?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I can. I'd, I'd like to just have Firefighter Jenkins expound,
explain a little bit more about where we are at with these particular objectives, and in
terms of the question that you just asked. So, if I may, I could have Firefighter Jenkins,
please.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Jenkins if you can be concise though with your remarks. Appreciate it.
MR. JENKINS: Thank you, Chair. Specifically related to the, to the CIP projects for the
Department, again, they also fall, falls under some of the special operations projects that
the Chiefs' are working on. You're, you're correct in, in seeing that in the, in the
Strategic Plan, Goals Seven and Eight, that they're ve .. , they're little bit vague on some
of the specifics to the long range planning for the Department. But in working recently
with Dave Taylor, and the Managing Director on the Integrated Infrastructure
Management Plan, and that plan is being used to drive the Department's organization and
priorities of these types of projects. The Chief has been working off of a, a list
unofficially until that plan's put in effect. It identifies his CIP Priorities Number 1, 2, and
3, which address new facilities or significant upgrades or additions. It addresses
Countywide fire facilities and the priorities there. It addresses CIP Priority 2's, which
were also the same categories but marked further, and maybe a six-year or further plans.
And then the three's would be those pass the six years CIP plan moving towards a lot of
the things the Planning Department is addressing right now.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me. Firefighter Jenkins, is, is what you're referencing right now a
document that is the hands of this body?
MR. JENKINS: No, sir. It's not. It's actually a, a, on the piece of correspondence that the Chief
uses internally.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. And, you know, I appreciate you sharing that with us and again,
hopefully, at some point level of communication to help this body support, better support
your Department. It would help that we would know more about what those long range
plans, and discussions are, and how they're evolving to help us better understand and,
and develop financial support for, for the Department. I know Member Pontanilla, you,
you may have been ... something may have triggered off as far as prior discussion, so
you may have recalled your, your question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA; Yes, Chair. And this is in regards to what we were
talking about, and I'm looking at Goal 8-F, in regards to training facilities. I know it
shows over here end of September '07, is your target date. So, you want to build new
facilities ... I'm sure you needed some design dollars, you know, for CIP that will be
required in order for you to either design or, you know, look at an area that can
effectively provide the training facilities for our firefighters. So, as far as that, you know,
where is that, you know, right now?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Alright. Thank you, Chair. If I may?
CHAIR KANE: Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Pontanilla, I again, I'm, I'm glad you're asking, ask on these kinds of
questions. We do have ongoing discussions and, and plans on, on this particular
objective. Some of the areas that site that we're looking at, in particular was the Puunene
site there where we could do a harden type of site that would allow us to do both air ops,
and as well as vehicle apparatus on-site training, and what would be also known as urban
search rescues. So, those sites have been identified. We, we are still trying to develop, I
guess, our own timelines as, as to those sites. There's also initial sites in the central area
that we are exploring. I think is, is the choice of word I want to use at this point, because
we are still in that real infancy state of, of just exploring that opportunities that may, may
possibly arise. So, in, in, in that respect in terms of acquiring training facilities, yes,
that's on our, one of our primary objective, that, that we want to address, and I think
Chief DeCosta kind of shared with you a little bit more that at this point in time, yes, it
doesn't reflect, but we are approaching that, that so-called point of where we are ready to
move, and at that point in time, it would be some substantial kinds of requests that would
be made at that point and time. So, we are working on it. We, we want to address it in a
timely manner, and we do want to share this information with the, the Council as
recommended by the Budget Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, as far as the facilities themselves, if you are looking
at the, I guess, Central Maui Raceway Park, will the facilities also accommodate the
Police Department in regards to having their Department utilize that same training
facilities?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I may again?
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CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. It is my understanding that, that previously
there, there were some dialogue and some discussions with the Police and Fire about a
joint effort training facility. I have not been apprised of anymore of that discussion, but
certainly the Department has continued to look at this initiative aggressively. We may,
upon your, your recommendation, want to reopen that discussion with the Police
Department, but we have actively been pursuing this particular objective.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. One, one last question. In regards to the
people that are resp ... , responsible for each of the objective, if you do have like say
attrition and, and that person is, you know, leave the Department, do you have any back
up firefighters that would continue or assume the duties as far as trying to get this goals
and objectives ... you know see it through until it's completed?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Chair, if I may again? Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Again, again, I, I
think the questions are very relevant, and I appreciate that because there really is no back
up. Yeah, I mean, Chief DeCosta mentioned that everybody's on a shared leadership
teamwork kind of a concept, and this what I really appreciate about the men in the
Department that we work with that they also believe. They also strongly believe that this
is a, a, a good start, and a good guideline for the Department to work on, and to
accomplish these goals and objectives. But these are all volunteers that volunteer to step
up to the plate, and say, I have a little expertise in this area or a little more knowledge in
this area, can I help? And I think this is what has been really the moral fabric of the
Department at this point in time that we, we have these individuals sharing that concern
and, and want to make a difference in the Department. But there really is no back up.
Hopefully, well, so far, when a person has either retired, the next person has come up,
and normally we do this when we do our, our revisit the ... and review the document the Strategic Plan. This is when we, we acquire the, the, the new faces I call them or the
new people that or personnel want to be involved with the Strategic Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah, my, my line of questioning in regards to that is
that, you know, we, we want to ensure that, you know, you do have continuation in
regards to completing this task. And if, you know, you do have personnel that will
volunteer for this program or, you know, are you confident in, in a sense that someone
will volunteer who's an expert in this particular area as far as meeting those goals, you
know, hear, listening to you if this is a, a group kind of sharing of responsibility,
hopefully that someone will step forward and, and take over, you know, the leadership
position regards to making sure that this thing is met. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further questions in this area? Hearing none.
Why don't we go ahead and move on. Mr. Hokama, any particular questions?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Chairman. Thank you. And, and I appreciate your
willingness to recall Departments and Programs for review prior to decision making.
Chief, on 6-4 of the details under Code 911008, which is your Material and Supplies
Program under Fire Control, when you look down to your Sub-code 6221, Miscellaneous
Other Costs ... let me first say, if you did give the Committee a response, I apologize for
not retaining it, but what is this $150,000 increase over last year's $1,OOO?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Chair. If I may? If I it's ... my understanding if you look at,
I guess, our "B" Account request, one of those requests there lists the equipment storage
building facility request, and this is part of what we look at in terms of our Strategic Plan
to provide that type of facility to house and cover all of these equipment that we have
purchased. They are millions, millions of dollars equipment that are sitting out front at
Kahului Station in, in climate weather. And so, this particular initiative here, we explore
the possibility of looking at the different size, size of warehouse to meet our needs out
there in the public to provide this kind of building coverage to, to house the equipment
and the trucks, and also to create a ongoing space needed to store some of the ODP and
fuel and grant hazardous material kinds of equipment and supplies that we ordered. The
Kahului Station is under a huge, huge ... there's no space available for any kinds of
storage in that area. And it is, because probably they did not anticipate this to be a huge
concern, but as we looked at it from the past year, we saw that this is a ... we would
identify the need for us. In this particular case, that's where the $150,000 that you're
looking would be identified as that increase.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, have you ever been advised that when you look at building a
new structure, whether it be storage facility or not, if it's not operational or maintenance,
it's a capital improvements request?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I may? Mr. Hokama, thank you. To my knowledge at this point
in time, I, if, if that is correct, I'm, I have been advised at this point in time that, that is
where it should be.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I, I appreciate you telling us what that money was
intended to, to be for, and I'm sure the Committee will make its appropriate adjustments
regarding that request.
MR. KAUPALOLO: If I may, Chair? You right, I wasn't too clear, but this is a rental for that
facility. This is to ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you weren't clear. A rental?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yeah, this is to rent the space to house the trucks, and to cover the
equipment, and to provide additional storage space. This is for a rental.
CHAIR KANE: Mr., Mr. Hokama.

- 26-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 20, 2005

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: You had the same question as I and that's why I was asking Staff if they
provided us with something in writing. So, at this time, I will ask the Chief and the
Department to put something in writing to specify this so that we can put it in the proper
area, because at this point it doesn't seem like it is, as you've pointed out, Mr. Hokama.
So, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Chief, you know, if this is part of Home and Defense
monies and what not, it's my understanding how we order equipment, you know, you,
you basically give the manufacturer one year lead time, or the manufacturer gives you
one year lead time before equipment arrives in the County. To not be prepared to store,
as you say, millions of dollars of worth of equipment and vehicles, disturbs me greatly.
Especially when I reach my other part of the operational request and CIP expansion
request ... like 6-6, Chief. My understanding is we've supported this positions of
Assistant Chiefs in the current budget and, you know, if you look at the position count,
you know, also was in the '04 Budget, what are your Assistant Chiefs using now that now
in the '06 Budget, you ask for expansion vehicles - - $60,000?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If I may? Mr. Hokama, at the present time, the
Assistant Chiefs are using the back up vehicles for the Battalion Chiefs that on a 24-hour
basis. They are using the, the back up vehicles. The Support Services Chief does not
have a vehicle. He is using the vehicle that's assigned to the Strategic Plan officer for the
program. So, both Chiefs do have not a vehicle assigned but they are, are using whatever
we can put together for them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, everyone in senior management gets a ... their own vehicle, is
what you're telling us?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I'd, I'd like to answer that question as a yes, and back that up with, in the
case of the Operations Chief, you know, part of his responsibility is not just to plan and
develop. But in the last large fire we had at the Kahului Shopping Center, we all became
involved and he was part of the Logistics Operations Officer. So, for him to respond to
that fire, when we had 80 percent out there, it was very appropriate that he had a vehicle
and he could get through the civilian traffic line that was out there with emergency kinds
of lights and, and to respond to that incident there. The same would be for our Chief in
the Support Services. If we needed to get his people out there to support with rehab, to
support with the infra ... , infrastructure to provide more FCBA bottles for our people out
there. The Support Services Chief would need to also respond to that and they would be
part the incident command system that's implemented at, at the scene.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, the Chief's still, I believe, is a Captain or Firefighter Ill's job?
Somebody tell me, or the Battalion Chief's job?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, I not sure, I'm sure, I'm following your line of question, can
you re-verify that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't know when say bringing, you know, additional bottles and
what not, you know, I mean what does the Battalion Chief do then? What does the
Captain do?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I, I appreciate ... I may have misclarified, to try to clarify that for you ....
(CHANGE TAPE) ... He would be part of the logistics command system; so, he actually
would be coordinating, supervising the entire process because it's such a huge fire. He
would be part of the incident command staff that would be helping to develop, plan, and
coordinate that activity to happen, which would be correct, the Firefighter assigned or the
call back Firefighter III would be assigned to do the actual manual logistics of moving
two, three hundred bottles at a time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause, you know, I understand, you know, Chief Pascual did an
outstanding job regarding that very large and damaging fire. So, if you can pass on my
congratulations to Chief Pascual for the job well done.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. I will convey that to him.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, under your Fire and Rescue Operations, you know, in
compared to other Departments that had requests for, you know, increases in areas of, of
utilities, electrical, it appears your program had a, has, has not gone with those type of
requests. You okay with the request amount? And, you know, if we look at other
stations, I think, Chairman Kane from last year had, had a concern regarding gas, diesel
and oil, and when we look at your Department's request of the various stations, gas,
diesel and oil seems to be quite flat in, in general speaking. I know Lanai, you know, my
Committee is facing, I think, a $3.29 per gallon rate already for regular unleaded. The
Department does not see increases in, in this area for the, the ability of stations to operate
at, at levels that we, we expect?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. Mr. Chair, if I may? Mr. Hokama, you know, when we put
forth this particular document here that it, it had gone through without those, and we had
gotten rid of those after. We would have to include this adjustments in there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 1, if I understand my Chairman right, you got like one day to give us
that number. Uh, 6-26, Chief.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I'm sorry. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: I'd, I'd like, I'd like to if we're going to continue with additional questions, I'd
like to take our morning break at this time. We've been going for a little over an hour
and a half, and I'd like Members to have the opportunity to take care of their personal
needs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, at this time, it's 10:40 a.m. Members. We'll break until 10:55 a.m.
This Committee is in recess .... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

10:39 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:00 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay. Members, we'll reconvene. Thanks for the break. I
believe Councilmember Hokama had the floor and was referencing page 6-26 of our
details. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to ask the Chief regarding
your out-of district travel, Chief, 911015, we've pretty much over the years appropriated
$20,000 and in, in '04, and again, Chief, I'm, I'm not sure when your exact tenure date
started, but we show zero dollars having been expended. Is this a really needed account,
and if it is, can you share with us how you intend to utilize it for the upcoming year, and
what have you used from the current year, please? In general amounts. You don't have
to give us the exact, but you know, you, the best, you know, the best you can, please.
CHAIR KANE: Chief, we are on page 6-26 of the details at the very top, Travel Out-of-District
(Molokai/LanaiiHana), and there is an appropriation of $20,000 for this fiscal year.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And if I may? Mr. Hokama, I mean at this time
of year it allows us to bring our people from off-island, Lanai and Molokai, as well as if
we need to Hana, to attend the training that's necessary, and by that, they would need, we
would need to take care of airfare to be able to travel. So, I, I believe, that this is still
necessary with us to, to have that funds there available.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Chief, and tell me, you know, if, if I'm understanding this
incorrectly, please, you know, correct me. So, in the full Fiscal Year 2004, Chief, not
one dollar was spent on a rural district firefighters to be brought in for training? 'Cause it
shows expended, zero dollars, and I know you guys do training.
MR. KAUPALOLO: And, Mr. Hokama, you are correct. We are, we, we have done a, a lot of
training. We brought our people in to have their hands on skills for the burn trailer and
apparently ... this ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Did you guys utilize another account to take care of those things?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Yeah. You know, I, I don't have that answer at this time for you. I, I
would like to have that opportunity to, to have that answer for you. Yet it could very well
may have been through the accounting process see.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This would also allow you to send your trainer to those districts as
well? It's not always that the men has to, have to come to Kahului Station or at the
airport for a aircraft burning trainings program. You know, you can, you have the ability
now to go, and to Molokai, take care your Pukoo Substation, your Hoolehua Substation,
as well as your main Kaunakakai Station. You can do it the reverse?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes, that would be correct to stating it that way. That we also bring some
trainers over to Molokai and Lan ... , Lanai to conduct training for the personnel out there
in the area.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. No, I just wanted to know 'cause if you tell me we
gotta take it out of different accounts for specific things like we'll take it out of HazMat
training for HazMat things then, then I, I was willing to make some adjustments. But
what I wanted to ask you next, please, Mr. .. Chief, is page 6-33, please. And Chief, you
know, regarding your Fire Rescue Operations, does your helicopter, I'm sure you, you
have established protocols in the, for utilization. Is that a good understanding on our
part? Protocols have been established of when your helicopter is needed to lift off or on
every call they're on stand-by and they lift?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct. And my understanding, we do have our protocols and
SOG's in place for helicopter operations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, they, they won't lift for every call out though, right?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Urn ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I can see for, you know, water rescue, lost hiker, you know, that, but
if it's like a ... heart attack at residence, those things I'm, I'm assuming, you not, you not
calling your helicopter services?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yeah, that would be a good assumption. There's a priority and there's a
SOG procedures as to when, and who authorized the so-called use of the helicopter. So,
you're correct, there is protocols and SOG's in place.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Has anything changed since we started supporting this program
'cause I remember the Members and the Department went into a lengthy discussion about
transportation of injured personnel and what not, and then we had talked about, well, the
amount of space that a stretcher bearing chopper would need, the type of engines, the
type of, has those things changed since operations has been implemented?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: If I may, Mr. Hokama, I'll let Deputy Chief Bal explain on that.
MR. BAL: There hasn't really been any changes because we do have a Safety Committee and
what we follow along the way. But there has been instances where the chopper could not
... the, the big Air Med could not come in, and it took our chopper to bring them out,
and in those isolated instances, those things have had happened, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that a reimbursable or pro-ratio reimbursement back to your, your,
our Fire Department?
MR. BAL: Well, basically, no. But what happens is we bring 'urn to where the Air Med can
take them out, and then fly them out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And again, yeah, Chief, you know, please appreciate where
I'm coming from 'cause besides this ... we had a, also a, an original million dollar
request to continue the Medical Chopper Program, which is just our share, and with this
increasing to now over $700, 000, you know, we put a lot of the people's money in
helicopter service. In your contracts with ... what is current contract amount for your
service, please, Chief? Do you have an under ... a, a figure you could share with us this
morning on the helicopter contract?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, if I may. If you looking at 11140 on helicopter services.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Under 6112, Contractual Service, there's an amount that list this request
for that $720,000, and then Other Contract, Other Services also listed for that, which is
not, I mean, it's not listed for that, but the total my understanding is, that we're requesting
is $720,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, in, in one year the contract has increased $100,000, Chief?
'Cause last ... the current year that you working from under Contractual Services, you,
you requested and we supported, $620,000. Okay. This year you asking us for $100,000
more, so, that, that was why I was wondering if that's the contract amount that we've,
we're obligated to?
MR. KAUPALOLO: It's my understanding that based on the contract that was submitted and
the cost that was shared with us that this was the amount that would be necessary to have
a Helicopter Operations Program.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's one big jump, Chief, you know, in, in one year. Do you,
would you know, and, and I was going to ask the Budget Director, but maybe you know,
Chief, those unexpended, because it's a contract under the '05 Budget, your current year
budget, if you have a balance, positive balance left, does that carryover to the succeeding
budget year, because it's a contract?
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CHAIR KANE: Budget Director.
MS. MORRISON: It's my understanding, Mr. Chair, that there has to be some of kind of
communication with the Finance Department to close out the contract, so, it does get
lapsed, and moved into carryover savings.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, well, that helps me 'cause, I, you know, I'm trying to
look at the, the history we have, which is from '04, 'OS, and then the new request. If we
go with the '04 number, we obviously know that the current year is slightly short, and, so
to make up that difference then you, you're upping your '06 request to carryover the
short, if it's a contractual thing that doesn't lapse your money. But, I'm going to take the
Budget Director's comment that the Finance Department does terminate the contract at
the end of the fiscal year ... is that, is that, would be that, would that be accurate, Budget
Director?
MS. MORRISON: Not unless there is specific communication with them. That was my
understanding with, with Finance Department that the contract will, the contract amount
will stay in perpetuity essentially, I guess, until somebody or actually goes through the
accounts, but that, that may be lead to, if the contract is for four years, for example, it
would not lapse.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MS. MORRISON: But it will require attention from the Department, and from my office from
time to time to review the contracts to make sure that there is, if there are unexpended
funds from a contract that is inactive that we close it out and, and move them into carry
over.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, if possible, with the assistance of the Budget
Director, if, maybe we can get a little better understanding of where the contract with the
County, and the service providers as it regards to this account, please.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll, we'll work with that with Staff and Budget Director.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thanks. Uh, Chief, 6-35. You, you know, with Napili and
Wailuku, you know, we have close to a million dollars of requests for two 1500GPM
Apparatus. So, has this, I, you know, I, my understanding is the Department has worked
hard to create a criteria or, or procedure for replacement vehicles. So, so, both of these
vehicles have met that criteria or, maybe we can understand that it is beyond repair as, as
another standard that this big request is for Wailuku and Napili.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. Mr. Chair, if I may?
CHAIR KANE: Chief.
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, we have been able to put together the request of the Council
this year to come up with a apparatus vehicle replacement scheduling plan, and through
that plan, we have been able address the needs of when we should replace these trucks as
necessary. We have implemented a ... my understanding a 30-year, 25-year plan on
vehicles that will allow us to look at it, rather than subjectively, but more objectively,
when we should replace these vehicles. And according to what we have right now, we
would need to and we're projecting and, and this would come forward with more
information to the Council that within the next two years, based on that study we did, we
would have to replace two trucks a year, if we met that criteria of that 20-year average.
We're looking at the life span of these trucks really go down ... {inaudible} ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, one, the generalize plan with good, good maintenance is
about 20-year life span, in general?
MR. KAUPALOLO: In general, that's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Later on some of our Departments have years of in-service
and mileage. Is mileage one of your criteria also for replacement or with good
maintenance and, and the ability of the vehi ... , apparatus to perform is the main?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I, I appreciate this ... I appreciate that question. You know, both of those
variables are, are very important. It's actually what we drive a lot, when I talked to our,
our mechanics is the pump hours on the trucks. The pump hours is the amount of hours
we use this pumps at, and they deteriorate faster than maybe if we had a station that was
not actively running a lot versus a station like Kahului, Wailea, Lahaina that, that their
usage and mileage gets extremely high, and that's going to correlate because they're
doing a lot of rounds. The problem there is that they're going to have a higher pump
usage. So, those variables are very important for our mechanics. And then, of course, in
the, the maintenance, there are good maintenance as you mentioned is always important
for us in making that assessment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You know, with your comment regarding the two vehicles
replacement per year. Do you have your, your, a list that could help us with our future
budgetary requirements? You already have your kind of planned out for next five, six
years already, which equipment you would like to have considered replaced. For some
equipment, I'm sure the engine and frame is solid, but you just need to have that pump
replaced, 'cause of your pump ... , pumping hours.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Correct. We, we have the so-called Vehicle Replacement Fire Apparatus
Placement. Plan in, in place at this time. We're, we're trying to implement it, and it, it is
something that we will, will be able to share with you. Ultimately, I kind of mentioned
that our mechanics, and I've talked with them, and they really look at pump housing
replacement as something that we want to explore too, and see if that's a good possibility
of repairing some these trucks.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I think that's great because I would like to see as long as
possible our senior truck on Lanai to be able to be a functioning component of our, of our
station. I know for many they, you know, if they looking and say it's old and ugly, but
damn it works good, boy, when, when maintained. My, my other question to you, Chief,
is 6-38.
CHAIR KANE: Urn ... before you move on.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I'm sorry. I apologize, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Do you folks have, off the top of your head, the specific identification of these
vehicles that are being replaced? Whether it's a ladder, a pumper. Can you give us more
specifics on the two areas -- for the Napili and the Wailuku Station, please?
MR. KAUPALOLO: We'll be able to do that, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, and I'm sorry. Two other. I, I know you using acronyms, LZ, landing
zone, SOGs on, on safety operating guidelines, I'm assume. So, if you can just clarify
when you using acronyms as some members may not be aware of the acronyms that you
using. SOGs.
MR. KAUPALOLO: SOGs, standing ... standard operating guidelines.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Members, and so anytime you hear one acronym you not
familiar with, don't be afraid to jump in. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: .. , (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, thank you. The Chair was aware of it, but I kind of saw some faces
with some frowns, so, I just wanted to slow us down to get that. Thank you. Mr.
Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Chief, on 6-38, under your Fire Prevention
Bureau, you have a request before us for $30,000 for rentals, which was not part of the
last, the current year, and the previous year's budget consideration. Can you give us
some comment on that?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. Mr. Chair, if I could? Mr. Hokama, thank you again for that
question. We did submit in a request from the Fire Prevention Bureau regarding an office
space rental for the Fire Prevention Bureau. The original request did ... request that we
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try to remodel the existing structure that their in. Based on the number of ... concerns
we had that looked at the existing facility, and then to meet Federal and County
requirements allowed us to, to probably look at another avenue of how we could sustain
the operations, provide for future expansions in the Department, in that particular Bureau,
and allow us to also to maintain some viability in terms of the security for our, our
people, you know, after the 9-11 incident. This $30,000 is a rental request to allow us to
go out and rent a building space for that amount for the year or within that amount for
the, for the year. And again, this would allow the Fire Prevention staff to be able to
function at a, a much more efficiently. The present condition they have, I believe, they
have a 700 square foot area that they work up to.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
understand it?

Chief, you're still currently in the Wailuku Fire Station as I

MR. KAUPALOLO: They're cleaning the, the annex right next to the Wailuku in that small.
We kind of did some in-house work in there. It used to be a weight room and we, we've
converted that into the Inspectors Plan Check-in, and an office for Val Martin there. But
the irony of it all is that they had been working through that, and for us to, to allow them
to expand into, and be able to grow and, and meet the needs of the community, we think
this is a, a real viable request for us at this point in time to put ten times the amount of
money that we requesting mainly just to do the renovation or upgrade at the existing
facilities. So, that is our request for the Fire Prevention Bureau.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
square feet?

So, Chief, your current program is utilizing approximately 700

MR. KAUPALOLO: That's my understanding from Captain Val that the number of people in
there right now, Fire Code Standards are a little concerned about that because the only
office space is 100 square feet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And how people is, is that for your program, Chief?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Fire Prevention currently has nine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine people in that.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Nine people within the facility. And part of the Station, Station 1, we've
encroached into their area. We're about taking over a space in there to make do so to
speak for the operations, and at some point in time when, if we do move out, they'd like
to get that space back.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This ... what, what, what is the gross intention to go for a
rental space of what, 1,000 square feet? And ... is this part of a coordinated effort with
the $150,000 in another area of your Department's request for rental?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, if I may? Mr. Hokama, that is correct. That is the intent for us to
be able to move forward. And again, to be able to expand into and to provide better
services for our community. I think this is a real viable request for us, and it is in line
with ... I'm trying to look at an area where there is a need for Administrative kinds of
storage as well as equipment that, that we need to purchase.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So, you looking at about 1,000 square feet for your Bureau?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Give me a second here. Probably could change. I trying to look through
my notes right now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, you're going to have to excuse me. I can't seem to find that
particular ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: I understand what it is you're looking for to house additional of at least 11
people within that proposed facility.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Where is the Department hoping for that to be located in Wailuku, Kahului? Does it matter?
MR. KAUPALOLO: It does and, and it's good question again. We're talking with Captain
Martin over here and he has spoken to me that there is a building just up the street from
the Department. The name of the building, I believe, is the Realty Building and ... it
would be just in close proximity next to the station. So, it's in the Wailuku District.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Your storage and building under your Administration,
that $150,000., that is for Kahului, I'm assuming?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Actually, it would be for the entire Maui County to provide storage for.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But, but where are you planning to have that rental?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Okay, the initial ... work that we did or try to look at different areas. It is
... there are buildings in Kahului in that district that we explored.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, the $150,000, if I understand as, as, as a rental. That's
one year rental, $150,000 of, of rental of a building?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Actually, it's a little _ _ of what we get, but we just projected that, that
would be around the figure to work with. The square footage actually, we looking at, and

- 36-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 20, 2005

the amount of the square footage probably carne in a little lower. But you're correct that
this would, this would be for a, a year rental space out there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What, what are we talking about, 10,000 square feet, 15,000
square feet?
MR. KAUPALOLO: We're probably anything between 6 and 8,000. So, it would be a 60 x 100
foot building to, to be kind of specific.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Kahului, right, Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: And that was my understanding, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Your Fire Prevention does claim, claim, excuse me not claim,
plan review work also, Chief? So, I guess, they want to be close to DSA, to be able to
work with the, I guess, the other reviewers and approvals that is required for building
plans and other requirements?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct. Mr. English, who handles plan reviews, works out of that
same office with them, and he does visit the County Building very frequent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, might not make sense to have everything in just one rental
building then?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I'm trying to draw on that, but if, if you speaking of the building that's,
we're looking at for the Fire Prevention office, I think it's right within the Wailuku
district, and it's right close to the County Building. So, it would not inconvenient any
more than what it does at this present time with the location that they're at.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Chief, maybe once, if, if we ever build our MulitPurpose facility on our parking lot, it might get space for take care those kinds of needs.
MR. KAUPALOLO: That would be a, a great help.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for my opportunity to get the
comments from the Chief and his staff.
CHAIR KANE: Members, are there any other questions?
Pontanilla.

Mr. Molina, followed by Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just one question as it relates to Objective
7-A of the Strategic Plan with the development and funding of long-term apparatus
facilities. I guess I could get from the Department just an update on the Haiku Fire
Station situation.
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I, I understand there is some movement going on with it right
now. At, at this point in time, there's, there is a, and I'd like to have Firefighter Jenkins
give us a-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. KAUPALOLO: --brief explanation, if I may?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chief.
MR. JENKINS: Chair, Member Molina. As stated earlier, we have a CIP list that we're
working off of in preparation of dealing the Integrated Infrastructure Management Plan,
and the Chief has set priorities for CIP for Priority 1, 2, and 3. Currently in the bond,
excuse me, but the CIP list of projects for all the districts serves, they are outlined, many
fire projects, including Haiku Station. And when we review, as Chief has, has between
2007-11, and the current scheduled amount of money was $3,575,000 in a bond. So, that
fits into his Priority 1 categories. And the Chief has us do research on getting
approximate cost of all the various stages of that project ... (CHANGE TAPE) . .. and
then he would address it then.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, at this point, have you found a site or anything at this point
... the, the site that you're considering I should say?
MR. BAL: Okay. You know, we've had, we've had several offers, and of course with that,
there is some expected prices to pay. And one of them was actually getting a water line
to the property and also offering water meters to the owner. There has been another offer
like that and there are some things that, that is not very productive for it ... trying to stay
within our own goals and costs.
COUNCILMEMER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And, I know the community has . . .
expressed their concern and I guess support for the, for a fire station out there to help
reduce I guess everybody's insurance rate is up as well as provide safety. So, you know,
I thank you thank you for ...
MR. BAL: We're, we're open to suggestions if somebody has found land. By all means, we, we
were being active in trying to find this.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And Haiku's now listed as the fastest growing community in
the County at this point. So, we'll see, hopefully something will pop up. Thank you,
Chief. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. And there's additional comments on page 23-3 of
your program budget just for the Haiku Fire Station in the '07 forecast. Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Kind of follow up on the helicopter
service. When we do rescue, do we assess people that we rescue for services, or we just
bite the bullet and, I, I guess, and accept all of the cost?
MR. BAL: This ... that, that, that is what we, that's what we do, and unless this body chooses
to change it, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, we pick up all of the cost?
MR. BAL: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. The other thing is, I know the last time you guys
were here in regards to vehicle replacements, yeah, you provided us with some kind of
schedule in regards to the vehicles that are, are required or not required, but that had been
looked at as replacement vehicles. I was wondering if we could have the, the
replacement schedule for this vehicle, so that at least, we can take a look at something
and what's coming up in the near future. Evidently, this year, you know, there's a lot of
things that are included in your budget and, and two previous budgets some of the
information that we ... you guys gave us was helpful in the sense that, you know,
determined the fate of the Department itself. So, if we could a replacement schedule for
the vehicles of your Department that would help.
MR. BAL: We can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla that, that request is not required for the budget session now, but
for a more a, a response that can be sent to Councilmember Molina's Committee,
Committee of the Whole?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, it could.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Okay. Since that's under the purview of the Committee of the Whole.
That seems like the place where we can have that information sent to and, and reviewed
for further consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And I'll ask Staff to send out the letter but then the response can
come back probably and through the Chair's office, we can make sure it gets sent over to
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the appropriate committee. Any further questions, Members, on the '06 proposal from
the Department of Fire and Public Safety? The Chair's intention is to ask you to consider
wrapping it up very soon, so, we can provide you additional time to prepare yourselves
for the upcoming schedule of deliberations, so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE. Any other areas? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I know, I just want to thank both the Chief, and the Deputy, and
Firefighter Jenkins, and I don't know where the other Assistant Chief DeCosta. But,
gentlemen, thank you very much for assisting, especially with me this morning with the,
the needs of your Department. I appreciate your efforts and your comments. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, seeing no further request for information. Chief, on behalf of
the Committee, we again reiterate what Member Hokama has just stated. We thank you
for being here this after ... this morning, and we hope to have some good results with
respects to your specific requests for this fiscal year's proposal. Thank you very much
for your presence.
Members, the Chair intends to adjourn this meeting for today, and we will be convening
or calling to order a meeting tomorrow afternoon at 1 :30 p.m., and at that time the Chair
will be providing the Chair's proposal as a starting point. The Chair's intention is to just
cover some, some general areas for clarification, but, but the Chair does not intend to get
into any specific or in-depth discussions tomorrow afternoon. The Chair intends to do
that starting Friday morning.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: When do we start?
CHAIR KANE: Tomorrow afternoon, we're going to have public testimony. We're going put
the, the Chair's proposal is going to be submitted to all of you. We can go, make a round
through it, just so you have any understanding, and then from there if the body feels like
going through and getting into any details, but the Chair does want to provide you folks
ample time to, to digest.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Digest.
CHAIR KANE: Exactly, to absorb and digest, and be ready for Friday morning's procession of
the, the deliberations. So, that's, that's the intent. However, if the body, in its infinite
wisdom decides to do another direction, the Chair is open to any suggestions. But, we'll
start from tomorrow afternoon at 1:30 p.m. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The proposals are due ...
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CHAIR KANE: Yeah, by the way, the proposals are due this afternoon at 4:30 p.m. The Staff
and the Chair would appreciate that timeline; therefore, we can have a, a complete
proposal prepared for the body by tomorrow afternoon. So, we'll work with you folks,
whatever information or clarification, or documents, you can get to the Staff, it will be
greatly appreciated.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: Members, this meeting for the 20th of April is adjourned. '" (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

11:35 a.m.

, ;nair
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